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01d Oakland Manor

Columbia

Private 1750

0l1d Oakland Manor faces west on the east side of Hyla Brook Road, mid-
way between the entrances to The Mending Wall and Pasture Gate Lane.

It is a five bay wide, one room deep, two and a half story high, gabled
roof (running north-south) stone (measuring some 50 x 25 feet, featuring
stone quoining and flat stone lintels) house, constructed on a stone
foundation, with two wide brick chimneys inset into its north and south
walls and a two and a half story high, three bay wide, gabled roof,
central portico taking up the three central bays of its west facade.

The portico is held by four square posts and two half posts and is swur-
mounted by a pediment holding a four-light bull's eye.

Fenestration for the building is vertically aligned. Windows on the
west facade are rectangular, double casement windows, holding six-six
lights, underlined by wooden sills and surmounted by wide, extended,
flat stone lintels. A small basement window, surmounted by a flat stone
lintel, is found in the north end bay, vertically aligned to the first
and second floor window of this bay.

Four, wide, stone steps lead to the three bay wide, cement landing of
the entrance portico, covering the central rectangular, paneled, en-
trance door, which is flanked by fluted pilasters and surmounted by a
flat, wooden lintel, decorated with a pediment. A small, rectangular,
second floor, six-light casement window is vertically aligned to this
entrance.

The north and south walls are similar, holding only two square, attic,
four light, windows, the west bay windows of which are vented. Believed
by some local historians to be the original Oakland Manor, this build-
ing is now surrounded by the neighborhood of the Birches in the new
town of Columbia. Local folklore relates that the building was once
used as a garrison for soldiers. This story is very plausible for dur-
ing the tenure of Colonel George K. Gaither, as master of Oakland Manor,
a staunch Confederate, troops were quartered in the area. Colonel
Gaither reviewed "Gaither's Troopers" in front of the new manor house,
which was constructed in 1827 by Robert Oliver, and which was located
southwest of this old building on the opposite side of Governor War-
field Parkway.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

0ld Oakland Manor faces west on the east side of Hyla Brook Road, mid-
way between the entrances to The Mending Wall and Pasture Gate Lane.

It is a five bay wide, one room deep, two and a half story high, gabled
roof (running north-south) stone (measuring some 50 x 25 feet, featuring
stone quoining and flat stone lintels) house, constructed on a stone
foundation, with two wide brick chimneys inset into its north and south
walls and a two and a half story high, three bay wide, gabled roof,
central portico taking up the three central bays of its west facade.

The portico is held by four square posts and two half posts and is sur-
mounted by a pediment holding a four-light bull's eye.

THE WEST ELEVATION

Fenestration for the building is vertically aligned. Windows on the
west facade are rectangular, double casement windows, holding six-six
lights, underlined by wooden sills and surmounted by wide, extended,
flat stone lintels. A small basement window, surmounted by a flat stone
lintel, is found in the north end bay, vertically aligned to the first
and second floor window of this bay.

Four, wide, stone steps lead to the three bay wide, cement landing of
the entrance portico, covering the central rectangular, paneled, en-
trance door, which is flanked by fluted pilasters and surmounted by a
flat, wooden lintel, decorated with a pediment. A small, rectangular,
second floor, six-light casement window is vertically aligned to this
entrance.

THE NORTH AND SOUTH ELEVATIONS

The north and south walls are similar, holding only two square, attic,
four 1light, windows, the west bay windows of which are vented.

THE EAST ELEVATION

The east elevation is similar to the west elevation, holding two north
and south bay, double casement, six-six light windows, underlined by
projecting flat wooden sills and surmounted by flat stone lintels on
each side of a central rectangular, entrance door. The central bay
holds a smaller, four light, rectangular, square, second floor window,
surmounted by a flat stone lintel.

The interjor features a central hall of some seven feet in width, with

a large, first and second floor, twenty feet by twenty feet room,
originally placed on each side of the hall, but now partitioned. Only

the attic staircase is original to the building, which was gutted sometime
prior to 1950 when it was. restored by Mr. and Mrs. Reich in 1952. At
that time. a new roof was put on the building and the building completely
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restored as we see it today.

This large stone building was surrounded by its dependencies. A stone
slave quarters lies only six inches north of the building's north wall
and was connected to the main house by an underground passage. North-
west of the stone slave quarters lies the old blacksmith shop, now used
as a private residence. Directly west of the mainhouse and facing
Wilde Lake is the old sheep barn for the property, now used as a boat
house for the Wilde Lake boat dock on which it is now located. South-
west of the house and now located within the Wilde Lake Park, which
runs around Wilde Lake, is the old, hipped roof, Stone Spring House

for the property, which, as late as 1952, furnished water for the three
houses here.

A large barn lies due north of the cluster of houses, facing Wilde Lake
and not far from the Boat Dock.

The buildings are all in a good state of repair. The blacksmith shop
and slave quarters are individually owned, while the two barns and
spring house are located within the Wilde Lake Park area.

0ld Oakland Manor is now surrounded on the east, north and south by

the neighborhood of the Birches, characterized by single family, detached
dwelling units and on the west it is bordered by Hyla Brook Road and Wilde
L.ake and its park area.

Since the interior of the building was completely restored in 1952, much
of the interior has been altered. The building, however, features its
original attic staircase and four fireplaces, two of which are uncovered.
The tiles in one of these fireplaces cracked so that in repairing the
tile and taking out some six tiles in the fireplace to do so, an old
cement slab was uncovered with the date 2 June 1750.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The 014 Oakland Manor House is significant to Howard County and the
State of Maryland architecturally as a fine example of a mid-eighteenth
century fieldstone house, which was completely restored in 1952. Little
remains of the manor but the attic staircase and the original fire-
places, one of which contains a cement slab with the date 1750. Covered
by fireplace tiles, it was discovered when these tiles had to be removed
for repair. Several other things point to the strong possibility that
this was the 014 Oakland Manor House. 1. The use of fieldstone points
to the period in which the 014 Manor House was constructed. Later, the
ashlar granite block construction we find in the 1840's wzs used for a
building of this dimension. 2. The dimensions of the building are
significant,25'x 50, for most of the early stone buildings were of more
modest proportions. The manor would have been constructed on a larger
scale than the smaller stone buildings,which dot the Howard County
landscape. 3. The placement and size of the window openings are of
interest. Although vertically aligned, they are not proportionally
scaled as we find later. 1In addition, the smaller openings seem to
Suggest the use of casement windows, which in Virginia and New England
were used very early. 4. No stone sills. By 1840, most stone build-
ings featured pProjecting stone sills. 5. Numerous bits and pieces of
early pottery and china have been found on the site and have been col~
lected by the present owners.

Historically, Oakland Manor is significant for its association with the
Dorseys. It stands on a tract of land callea "Dorsey's Adventure",

a survey of 1688 by the Honorable John Dorsey. John willed this sur-
vey to his grandson, Edward Dorsey. Oakland Manor, should the date of
1750 inscribed on the fireplace stone be correct, must have been con-
Structed by a Dorsey, for local historians relate that in 1785, Colonel
John Dorsey sold the property to Luther Martin, Attorney General of
Maryland.

In 1827, the property was sold to Robert Oliver, an Englishman who in-
creased the estate. 1In 1838, George R. Gaither of Baltimore bought
"Oakland Manor". It was his son, Colonel George Riggs Gaither, who
organized "Gaither's Troopers", which later became a unit of the Con-
federate Army. During this time, it is believed that the o0ld stone
manor house was used to quarter these troops.
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Enfolded in folklore with some evidence which would point to its early
construction, the 0ld Oakland Manor is significant to both Howard County
and the State of Maryland as a fine example of early stone architecture
with a high probability factor of being the early "Oakland Manor" house,
constructed here by the Dorsey family.

As an example of early stone architecture, constructed on a larger scale
than other stone houses in Howard County, 0ld Oakland Manor should be
considered for inclusion to the National Register of Historic Places,
the State Critical Areas Program and any local landmark ordinance the
citizens of Howard County may seek to initiate, should its owners so
desire.
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DATE

2/7/63

4/8/49

15/10/48

5/10/48

21/11/34

22/5/95

LIBER FOLTO

403 337

MWB 212 161

MWB206 366

MWB206 363

BWJr.150 258

ACR65 451
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TITLE SEARCH
HO-184 OLD OAKLAND MANOR
prepared by Cleora Thompson, A.I.

GRANTOR

Miriam J. Keller

Mercantile Trust Company
of Baltimore, executor

of last will and testament
of Milton W. Bosley Wills
No. 10-Folio 106

"Whereas the . . . Executor . .
did on April 29, 1949 sell said
land unto Walter J. McCauley .
for . . . $72,000. . . .
"Whereas . . . Miriam J. Keller
has been substituted as purchas

. . . all those pieces or parc

C.P.

GRANTEE

George Ralston and
Edith Martin

Miriam J. Keller, widow

er

els

of land comprising the farm com-

monly known as "Oakland Manor"
James D. Brown and Bertha M.
Alpheus H. Ryan and Betty

Richard D. Biggs, Trustee
of Baltimore City

Evelina M. Bailliere &
Frederick H. Bailliere

Milton W. Bosley
James D. Brown and Bertha,

his wife

Alpheus H. Ryan

Katherine V. Tabb

# ACRES

1.00 a.

379.6 a.

379.6 a.
379.6 a.

379.6 a.
$15,000
(Private sale)

1st 350 acres
2 roads, 9 sa

perches firstly
and thirdly
described
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29/4/74

28/1/26

26/9/23

26/9/23

6/6/21

3/7/06

22/5/96

LJIJW33

HBN126

HBN 119

HBN119

HBN112

WWLC82

ACR65

516

87

155

152

547

283

451

Philip Tab

firstly described

R. Bennett Darnall,

atty.

"at a public sale made

January 20,

1925 by said

R. Bennett Darnall in pur-

suance of the power

vested in him .
certain mortgage from John

C. Stafford and wife to Sarah

by a

A. McDevitt et al

John C. Stafford

R. Bennett Darnall

John V.L. Findlay
and Corine Hart Findlay

M. Lee

"Katherine V. Lee and Frank

Evelina Bailljier and
Frederick H. Bailliere

"whereas the said Katherine
V.Tabb departed this life on
or about the 30th day of May

1889 .

leaving

her

husband Philip Tap and two

children

Evelina M.

Francis Morris

Garnett Y. Clark & Robert
Biggs

Sarah A. McDevitt

John C. Stafford

Sarah A. McDevitt

Annie E. McDevitt

Katherine E. McDevitt

Eugenia Brown of Baltimore City
John V.L. and Corine Hart
Findlay of Baltimore City

Katherine V. Tabb, now
Katherine V. Lee

Bailliere and Katherine V. Tabb

subject to

estate in

. . . life
Philip Tabb."

350 a. %

2 roads & sq
perches
firstly and
thirdly des-
cribed

350 A 2 rood
9 sq perch

350 A 2 rood
9 sq perch
$23,500

350 A 2 rood
9 perch
$20,000 mort

350 A.
2 roods 9
perches

350 A 2 rood
9 perches
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29/11/89 JHO55 258 Philip Tab Evelina M. Bailliere 350 A 2 roods
Katherine V. Tabb 9 perches

"being all the former estate

and residence of Francis Morris
formerly of said "Oaklands" . .
being the same premises devised
in and by the last will and
testament of said Francis Morris
to Kate V. Tabb now deceased
lately . . . .
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Name : HO-184
The 0l1d Oakland Manor

Location: 10026 Hyla Brook Road

Columbia, Maryland 21044
Photographer: Cleora B. Thompson, A.I.C.P.
Date of Photograph: February, 1980
Negatives in possession of the Maryland Historical Trust
View: Southwest

Photographer looking: Northeast
Photograph number: 1l of1l



